SCR - LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON:

MONDAY, 20 MAY 2019 AT 9.30 AM

11 BROAD STREET WEST, SHEFFIELD, S1 2BQ



Present:

James Muir (Chair) Private Sector Member

Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member

Professor Chris Husbands Co-opted Private Sector LEP Board Member

Julia Muir Private Sector LEP Board Member Lucy Nickson Private Sector LEP Board Member Neil MacDonald Private Sector LEP Board Member

Mayor Dan Jarvis Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority

Councillor Garry Purdy Derbyshire Dales District Council

Mayor Ros Jones Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council

Councillor Tricia Gilby
Councillor Simon Greaves

Chesterfield Borough Council
Bassetlaw District Council
THO Barrasa antation

Bill Adams TUC Representative

Professor Koen Lamberts Co-opted Private Sector Member

Dr Dave Smith Sheffield City Region Philippa Sanderson

Council

Officers in Attendance:

Dr Ruth Adams	Deputy Managing Director	Sheffield City Region Combined Authority
Colin Blackburn	Assistant Director - Housing, Infrastructure and Planning	Sheffield City Region Executive Team
Melanie Dei-Rossi	Assistant Director - Programme	Sheffield City Region Executive Team
Felix Kumi-Ampofo	Assistant Director - Programme Assurance	Sheffield City Region Executive Team
Mark Lynam	Director of Programme Commissioning	Sheffield City Region Executive Team
Mike Thomas	Senior Finance Manager / Deputy S73 Officer	Sheffield City Region Executive Team
Justin Homer		BEIS
Krysia Wooffinden	Assistant Director - Skills, Employment and Education	Sheffield City Region Executive Team
Craig Tyler		South Yorkshire Joint Authorities Governance Unit
Huw Bowen	Chief Executive of Chesterfield Borough Council	Chesterfield Metropolitan Borough Council
Neil Taylor	Chief Executive of Bassetlaw District	Bassetlaw District Council

Paul Wilson Chief Executive of Derbyshire Dales

District Council

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Apologies:

Laura Bennett
Owen Michaelson
Peter Kennan
Richard Stubbs
Tanwer Khan
Councillor Martin Thacker MBE
Owen Michaelson
Private Sector LEP Board Member
North East Derbyshire District Council
Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

Alison Kinna Co-opted Private Sector Member

Jo Miller Doncaster Metropolitan Borough

Council

Dan Swaine Bolsover District Council

Dan Swaine (NE Derbyshire emails)

Bolsover

District

Council/NE

Derbyshire District Council

Eugene Walker Sheffield City Region Executive Team

1. 1 Welcome and Apologies

1 Members' apologies were noted as above.

2. 2 **Declarations of Interest**

2 No declarations of interest were made in relation to any agenda item, any activity since the last formal meeting or any forthcoming activity

3. 3 Notes of Last Meeting

The notes of the previous meeting were agreed to be an accurate record.

4. 4 SCR Economic Performance

A report was received to update the LEP on the refresh of the Strategic Economic Plan and the development of the SCR's Local Industrial Strategy.

It was reported the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) will outline a route map to a more prosperous and productive City Region. The refreshed SEP will become the overarching strategy which will set out aspirations and priorities for the SCR over the medium to long-term, whilst the LIS is a new strategic document and will be a more focused plan; outlining the investment priorities for driving long-term growth in productivity, scaling up the assets in the City Region, and increasing investment in research and innovation.

The accompanying report provided the Board with an update on the process to develop the refreshed SEP and the new LIS, and the timescales for their completion.

It was reported the process is currently at the 'evidence gathering' phase, as a precursor to ensuring forthcoming discussions with stakeholders are appropriately informed.

It was noted the intention is to have a draft refreshed SEP and a LIS by September.

Members considered the importance of engaging a number of additional strategic stakeholders. It was confirmed these would all be engaged as part of the consultation phase.

Consideration was given to how much work can progress with the government on LIS given wider political issues, and other factors such as the pending Comprehensive Spending Review.

Further practical examples were provided to demonstrate the differences between the SEP and the LIS, together with comments regarding how these would fit together and what audiences they would essentially be for.

Concerns were noted that some major engagement exercises are scheduled for over the Summer, traditionally a difficult time to engage the public and other stakeholders. It was agreed the consultation exercise must be robust and meaningful.

Members highlighted some technical inaccuracies in the current report. It was confirmed these would be picked up going forward.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board notes the update provided on developing the Strategic Economic Plan and Local Industrial Strategy for SCR, and the timetable for completion.

5. 5 **LEP Delivery Plan**

A report was received informing the Board that following the publication of the Government's LEP Review report in July 2018, 'Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships', all LEPs are now required to produce and publish an annual Delivery Plan to outline the activities and outputs the LEP will deliver.

The report therefore set out the draft LEP Delivery Plan for 2019/20.

RESOLVED, that the Board approves the draft LEP Delivery Plan 2019/20.

6. 6 Transport Update

A report and presentation were received to provide an update on the latest transport workstreams.

Information presented covered pan-Regional activities (Transport for the North, Northern Powerhouse Rail and Strategic Development Corridors (SDCs) (focussing on the Southern Pennines SDC)), the Mayor's vision for transport and the SCR Transport Strategy, the Integrated Rail Plan, the Transforming Cities Fund bid, active travel matters and Doncaster Sheffield Airport.

Further information was provided to explain how the Peak District is recognised with the numerous pan-Regional studies.

The Board discussed the importance to many of the initiatives of clean air technologies, together with the opportunity this presents to better engage the private sector in helping the Region to achieve its transport ambitions. Members agreed the importance of the SCR being at the forefront of new technology development.

It was confirmed the various studies recognise the importance of north-south connections as well as east-west. Similarly, it was confirmed the importance of the East Coast Main Line is being appropriately recognised in all rail-related studies.

It was noted the draft Transforming Cities Fund business case will be presented to the SCR MCA on 3rd June.

Regarding active travel matters, the Board considered the relationship with air quality and the importance of keeping all policies connected.

It was suggested more should be done to engage and question the larger employers in the SCR, to help build the required evidence base needed to inform policy active travel policy decisions. It was confirmed activities such as this were scheduled and would help inform the development of the draft Active Travel Plan.

Members considered cycling best practice examples from other UK cities and considered what the SCR might do to learn from these and develop its own cycling culture.

Regarding Transforming Cities, assurances where requested that too much resource won't be inadvertently skewed towards these areas at the expense of the non-TCF areas which may risk becoming areas of deprivation.

Regarding Doncaster Sheffield Airport, the Board considered the various ways the SCR might continue to keep the airport and its future potential on DFT and other government departments' radar.

Regarding the Bus Review, the Board agreed the need for a more detailed timetable of activity to ensure all stakeholders can feed into studies as appropriate.

The Board considered whether national political uncertainty might affect any initiatives.

RESOLVED The LEP Board noted the content of the report.

7. 7 Skills Bank Update

A report was received to provide an update for the Board on the delivery on the SCR Skills Bank project.

The update provided an account of the history of the Skills Bank initiative.

It was noted a number of useful lessons were learnt during the operation of Skills Bank Phase 1, which have subsequently informed thinking for Phase 2.

It was suggested a more detailed breakdown of the deals done to date is required to better understand the effectiveness and reach of Skills Bank as a concept.

It was agreed to undertake a more dedicated discussion on the strategic skills agenda at the next LEP Board meeting and consider how the business community can be made more aware of and therefore support the SCR's skills programme.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board notes the update provided.

8. 8 **2018/19 Revenue Outturn**

A paper was received to set out the final outturn position for the Sheffield City Region MCA/LEP Revenue Budget and Revenue Programmes for financial year 2018/19.

The Board was advised the accounts would subsequently be presented to the MCA on 3 June 2019, but are noted they are currently subject to external audit, which may result in adjustments at a later date to the figures reported in the paper.

The Board was also asked to consider a proposal to develop a Business Case Development Fund to help provide the preparatory cost funding for new major schemes, noting it is currently the responsibility of the scheme promoter to find this funding, and a somewhat challenging requirement given other financial pressures. This proposal was supported by members and subsequently it was confirmed the matter would now be discussed with the districts' Economic Development directors and Directors of Finance.

The Board noted the important role the new Thematic Boards would be taking in respect of giving detailed consideration to the financial aspects associated with their relevant schemes.

Action: Dave / Mike to consider the roles of the Thematic Boards in supporting in supporting the financial and other aspects associated with scheme progression and report ideas to the next meeting.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board:

- 1. Note the 2018/19 final outturn position on the revenue budget and revenue programmes.
- 2. Endorse in principle the proposal to reinvest some or all of the income accrued from LGF to support resourcing the development of business cases, noting the need to develop the proposition in detail.

9. 9 LGF Programme Outturn

This paper provides an update on the 2018/19 LGF outturn position and the impact on the 2019/20 LGF programme.

Members were informed the 2018/19 budget hit its 100% spend target.

It was noted there is a strong scheme development pipeline in place for 2019/20.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board notes the 2018/19 LGF outturn position and the impact on the 2019/20 LGF programme.

10. 10 Annual Performance Review

A report was presented to provide the outcome of the 2018/19 LEP Annual Performance Review (previously known as the annual conversation).

It was reported that following the conclusion of the Review, it has been confirmed the Sheffield City Region LEP is compliant with the National Assurance Framework and is considered to be 'good' in all assessed areas.

The Chair led members in commending the team for achieving this result.

RESOLVED The outcome of the Annual Performance Review was to be noted.

11. 11 Overlapping Geographies

A report was received to provide the Board with the first draft of a suggested Collaboration Framework, for agreement by the SCR and D2N2 LEPs. It was noted this has been developed following the proposal outlined in the 2018 LEP Review that for areas where overlapping geographies are to be removed, such a framework is put in place to manage the process of removing the overlap.

Non-Constituent district Leaders indicated they are engaged with the D2N2 LEP regarding the determination of their future LEP membership positions.

It was noted a formal resolutions process would be worked up to address any issues arising from the transition to non-overlapping arrangements.

It was noted DfT have been asked to provide clarity on how current major scheme funding streams will be addressed as part of the transition to new governance arrangements.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board:

- 1. Note the draft Collaboration Framework
- 2. Approve the CEX to continue to negotiate this document on the LEP behalf, and bring a final document to a future board for approval.

12. 12 Thematic Board Membership

A report was received proposing the membership of each thematic board (MCA and LEP Lead members).

It was noted that each Board's membership will be supplemented by additional elected Member representatives from the Constituent districts, and also sectoral experts. It was noted representation from the non-Constituent districts would be dependent on the outcome of the review of overlapping geographies.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board ratifies the proposed membership of the thematic boards.

13. 13 Appraisal & Assurance Process

A report was received to provide details of the current principles and approach to LGF scheme appraisal, to invite a review of the strengths and weaknesses of the current approach, and to make a recommendation for strengthening current arrangements whilst ensuring no compliance requirements are compromised. Regarding the requirement to appoint an independent Chair of the Appraisal Panel, Members expressed support for this position being taken by the LEP Vice Chair (with the programme portfolio).

The additional proposals to strengthen the Appraisal Panel were agreed.

RESOLVED, that the Board approves the proposed preferred options to strengthen the appraisal, assurance and decision-making processes.

14. 14 Revised LEP Policies

A report was presented to provide the LEP policies, revised to ensure compliance with National Assurance Framework guidance.

It was noted that subject to ratification by the LEP Board, polices will be republished as 'final' on the SCR website and will be scheduled for an annual review in 2020.

It was suggested that whilst the Appointments Committee would benefit from continued attention to Equalities and Diversity, the importance of equality and diversity should be evident across all LEP activities.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board agrees the proposed changes to the LEP policies.

15. 15 LEP Vice Chair Position

A report was received inviting the Board's consideration of the proposed rationale for the appointment of a second LEP Vice Chair, to support the Chair in the areas of stakeholder engagement and management of the agreed programme and to lead on local business engagement and the management of the agreed programme.

It was noted that if approved, a communications plan for the recruitment and selection of a second Vice Chair will be developed. As a minimum this will

include the publication of the role and remit via the local website and social media, the government appointment channels and via partner agencies.

RESOLVED Approve the process to recruit a second vice-chair on the terms set out in the report.

16. 16 LGF Q4 Delta Dashboard

A report was presented to provide the Local Growth Fund Quarter 4 update in the form of the 2018/19 DELTA Dashboard monitoring form, seeking approval to submit the return to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) prior to the 24th May 2019 deadline.

It was noted the new housing completion numbers are subject to being updated prior to submission.

RESOLVED, that the LEP Board approves the formal submission of the Q4 2018/19 DELTA Dashboard to MHCLG.

17. 17 Mayoral Update

17 Provided for information.

18. 18 **Managing Director's Update**

18 Provided for information.

19. 19 Resolution Records

19 Provided for information.

20. 20 **Any Other Business**

20 It was noted that future LEP Board meetings would commence at 10.30am.